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Dear Mr Halldearn 
The Development of British Electricity Trading and Transmission Arrangements (BETTA) - Report on consultation and next steps.

Powergen supports Ofgem's proposed programme for implementing BETTA.   We are generally comfortable with the key priorities and scope of work identified by Ofgem since the December 2002 BETTA consultation, although there is clearly much detailed work to be done.   Ofgem are certainly right to tackle the difficult issue of establishing the process for identifying the GB system operator first.   

The existing Scottish electricity trading arrangements represent a significant impediment to extending effective competition in the generation the supply of electricity across the whole of Great Britain.   In our view the process of creating a single GB wide market is all about ensuring all market participants have  opportunity to compete on equal terms whether this is in England and Wales or in Scotland.    It is important that this should remain the main focus of the BETTA project.  Thus a pragmatic approach to addressing important issues such as the form of TO/SO incentives and various system standards is required if the industry is to avoid being distracted from this main task.

Given the challenging timetable for implementation of BETTA  there is a danger that some aspects of the reform may not be properly addressed and compromises made within the GB trading arrangement rules may prevent a full "levelling of the competitive playing field".   An area of particular concern is reform of transmission access and losses which has long been seen as prerequisite for BETTA  and indeed is represented by the second 'T' in BETTA.   Although we recognise detail debate is taking place elsewhere (i.e. under the England and Wales BSC and CUSC), it is worrying is that the consultation timetable specified in section 6 fails to specifically mention transmission access and losses, although the inextricably linked issue of transmission charges has a summer 2002 consultation scheduled.     

As you are probably aware Powergen has been particularly active in promoting changes to transmission access and losses in England and Wales.  Indeed we proposed BSC Modification Proposal P72 Introduction of Zonal Transmission Losses earlier this year.   Apart from the need to apply the right location signals to generation and demand, we are keen to ensure  that generators that happen to be located in Scotland should not be able to notify physical notifications to the GB SO well in excess of the ability of the system to transport such energy from north to south.   Otherwise unwarranted "constraining-off"  payments might be earned by such generators, which in turn would have to be paid for by all GB market participants.    Failure to properly deal with this issue could weaken the ability of non-incumbent suppliers to compete in Scotland and thereby reduce benefits Scottish consumers might have otherwise expected to have obtained from the increased competition under BETTA.

We also note that successful implementation of BETTA would seem to be contingent on the establishment of new TO and SO Price Controls.  Nevertheless, we would caution against the introduction of overly complex incentive mechanisms as part of these controls given the finite time and resources available to the BETTA project.   Many market participants are sceptical of the benefits of the TO/SO incentives recently applied to Transco in gas given 195 pages of Licence changes were required to describe them. 

The need for new forms of Price Control is a merely a side effect of the need to reorganise SO/TO responsibilities to achieve the right organisational structure to facilitate the new competitive regime.   Given this, we would not in the first instance support extending TO/SO regulation beyond the traditional RPI-X price controls and a GB SO balancing cost incentive, although development of a range of output based incentives may be appropriate in the longer term. 

Another area that will impact on the competitiveness of market participants is who will bear the costs of implementing BETTA.  In our view the costs should be shared between companies who will in future be generating in and supply to customers located in Scotland.   In addition as well as paying the incremental costs of effectively extending NETA to Scotland, contributions should be made by such companies towards a share of the original development costs of NETA.  

The need for GB wide BSC, CUSC and Grid Code is outlined in the consultation.  Currently the electricity industry suffers from fragmented governance arrangements with elements of the trading arrangement rules defined under a multitude of separate documents.  This leads to inefficiencies in the management of such arrangements.  Powergen believes BETTA provides the ideal opportunity for consolidation of electricity trading arrangements into a unified document rather than having separate GB CUSC, GB BSC and GB Grid Code.   Governance of such a GB wide document could then be managed through a GB Electricity Panel along similar lines to the existing England and Wales BSC Panel.   Such a process would increase transparency and maximise participation from GB BSC participants, energywatch and other key stakeholders.

Finally, we believe it is important that a cross-section of market participants are involved in the BETTA project.   Clearly close involvement of the incumbent transmission and Scottish electricity supply businesses is essential,  however competing generators and suppliers need to also play an active role in the process.   Powergen is keen to support the project and is willing to provide representatives for relevant Expert Groups once these are established.   Is it for example planned to establish a  NETA style "DISG group" to oversee the project?   Again we would be willing participate in such a group.

I trust you find these comments of assistance.  If you wish to discuss Powergen's views further please feel free to give me a call on 02476 42 5441.
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Yours sincerely,


Peter Bolitho

Cc  Nicola Pitts, Head of Energy Trading and Markets, DTI

      Richard Penn, Senior Economist, Energy Policy, DTI
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